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The Colquitt County Jail, one of the few examples of Gothic Revival 
architecture in Moultrie, is a three story building on a raised basement with 
a tower. Built on a cross-T plan, it is constructed of concrete and steel, 
and is dressed in oriental brick (stretcher bond), with trim in Georgia granite, 
The third story and tower are topped off by a battlemented parapet with crenel­ 
lated turrets on each corner.

The jail, which has overall dimensions of 54' - 1" x 56' - 7", is eight 
bays wide, and four bays deep. The first floor and tower openings have round 
arches of brick, while the second and third floors have flat lintels of Georgia 
granite.

Entrance to the interior is reached through a front and side door located 
in the forewardmost (north) pavilion. The first floor, which was originally 
living quarters for the sheriff or jailer, has six rooms, a kitchen and bath. 
The building extends to the south on this floor to provide for kitchen space, 
which has been expanded to the east within the past fifteen years.

The second floor is reached through a steel door which leads up the stairs 
to the main area of incarceration. Bull pens are located on the east and west 
sides, each containing four cells. Additional cells are located in the north 
and south pavilions. Although the third floor was designed identically to 
the second, it was not completed until much later, and then without individual 
cells. The third floor contains the death cell from which sentenced criminals 
can be hung. The floor drops out from under the feet of the person who has 
been sentenced, and the body is taken down from the second floor.

The tox^er, which is locally known as the "Buzzard's Roost" contains two 
cells for solitary confinement. All windows and cells throughout the building 
are enclosed with "five-ply, tool proof steel," The thickness of the walls 
on the first floor are seventeen inches and those on the upper floors are 
thirteen inches.

The only alterations to the original design have been the addition of 
more kitchen space, previously mentioned, and the bricking in of the windows 
half-way up on both the second and third floors. An exterior steel stairway 
was erected in the 1970s which leads to the ground from the third floor. The 
building has been painted white in recent years.

The Colquitt County Jail is set on a corner lot at the intersection of 
First Avenue, Southeast and Second Street, Southeast. It is surrounded by 
a period iron.fence on the north and east sides, and is adjacent to the county 
agriculture building to the south. Located one block from the square, it is 
in the Central Business District of Moultrie, Georgia,
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The Colquitt County Jail is among the most impressive buildings in Moultrie and 
is one of the county's few examples of Gothic Revival architecture. This is the 
first jail of its kind to be nominated to the National Register in Georgia. The 
Colquitt County Jail was built by the authority of the county commissioners and was 
considered "one of the handsomest and best equipped in the state." Its significance 
lies both in its extraordinary architecture (by Southwest Georgia standards), and 
its continual use as a jail by the county government.

According to the History of Colquitt County, by W. A. Covington, the second 
brick building constructed in Colquitt County was the old jail, built in 1892. 
This building set directly south, behind the present jail, and was taken down in 
1953 to make way for the Colquitt Agriculture Building.

The present jail was delivered to the county commissioners on August 14, 1915 
by Frank Holcombe, superintendent of the construction. The jail was designed and 
built by the Southern Structural Steel Company of San Antonio, Texas. The building 
was particularly handsome because of its pleasing combination of oriental brick, 
with the foundation, window trim, string courses and capstones in Georgia granite. 
Although the building is now painted white, the integrity of the architecture has 
not been compromised.

The cost of the jail was about $28,000 which was taken out of the county's 
general funds. What made the jail particularly momentous were its facilities. 
"The building is electric lighted and steam-heated and equipped with baths, both 
shower and tub, and sanitary in the fullest meaning of the word. The cells are 
enclosed with the best five-ply, tool proof steel and the latest and best locking 
devices, the kind used in the largest prisons in the country."

Separate cells were provided for "the separation of the sexes of both races." 
Special cells were available for boys and sick prisoners, and the tower was originally 
intended for incarceration of the insane. The first floor was designed as living 
quarters for the sheriff or jailer, and has been used as such up until the last 
decade.

The county governments in Georgia are the local legislative and judicial 
authorities in the State. The county jail, which is an essential part of a 
county government's system, represents the enforcement of the law in each county, 
and is necessary in many cases to carry out the sentence of a criminal. The jail
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The boundary is all that is owned by the owner that is considered the jail lot and 
is marked on the enclosed Colquitt County, Georgia Tax Map Number M-23 as parcel 71 
on Block D.
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Significance

in Colquitt County has served exclusively in that capacity since its construction 
in 1915.

Although new jail facilities have been desired by the county commissioners 
for some time, if funds are found to build new facilities there is a possibility 
that the present jail will be turned over to the Colquitt County Historical 
Society. Preservation of the building is supported by both county officials 
and private citizens.

The significance of the Colquitt County Jail lies both in its architecture, 
and its use by the county government as a jail. The jail is a major landmark 
in Moultrie, and this part of the State as well as being a symbol of law and 
order for Colquitt County.

This jail is architecturally significant because it is an unusual version 
of the early twentieth century interest in Gothic Revival Architecture. The 
elements of the style that can be seen in the jail are the parapetted walls with 
crenalated turrets on each corner, the tower like that of an ancient castle, and 
the round arches over many of the windows. This style was seen during this era 
more often in collegiate buildings such as the Ford Buildings at Berry College 
near Rome, Georgia, and some office buildings such as the Healey Building in 
Atlanta. The early nineteenth century had witnessed a similar interest in the 
Gothic Revival style resulting in Georgia in buildings such as the old jail 
in Greensboro and the Old State Capitol Building in Milledgeville. The earlier 
nineteenth century movement and the early twentieth century movement do not 
appear to be directly related in Georgia.


